
1 

 

 

 
MEETING: CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION 
  
DATE: Wednesday 14 April 2010 
  
TIME: 11.00 am 
  
VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle (This meeting will also be video conferenced 

at Town Hall, Southport) 

  
 

 
 
DECISION MAKER: Councillor Maher 
SUBSTITUTE: Councillor P Dowd 
  
 
SPOKESPERSONS: Councillor Hough 

 
Councillor Ibbs 
 

SUBSTITUTES: Councillor McGuire 
 

Councillor Pearson 
 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Olaf Hansen Committee Clerk 
 Telephone: 0151 934 2067 
 Fax: 0151 934 2034 
 E-mail: olaf.hansen@legal.sefton.gov.uk 
 

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions 
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: - 
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater 

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank.



3 

A G E N D A 
 
Items marked with an * involve key decisions 
 

 Item 
No. 

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected  

 

  1. Apologies for absence 
 

  

  2. Declarations of Interest   

  Members and Officers are requested to give 
notice of any personal or prejudicial interest and 
the nature of that interest, relating to any item 
on the agenda in accordance with the relevant 
Code of Conduct.  
 

  

  3. Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 8) 

  Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2010  
 

  

  4. Compulsory Purchase Order - Bedford and 
Queens Road and Klondyke area of Bootle. 

Linacre; 
Litherland; 

(Pages 9 - 
12) 

  Report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment 
Programmes Director  
 

  

  5. Enforced Sales Procedure and Property at 
24 Lander Road, Litherland 

All Wards (Pages 13 - 
58) 

  Report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment 
Programmes Director  
 

  

  6. Former Peoples Showroom – Replacement 
for St John and St James Church, Klondyke. 

Derby (Pages 59 - 
72) 

  Report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment 
Programmes Director  
 

  

  7. Exclusion of Press and Public   

  To consider passing the following resolution: 
  
That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following 
item(s) of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act.  The Public Interest 
Test has been applied and favours exclusion of 
the information from the Press and Public.  
 

  



4 

* 8. South Sefton Housing Market Renewal – 
Programme Outturn 2009/10 and Forward 
Programme 2010/11 

Church; Derby; 
Linacre; 

Litherland; 
Netherton and 

Orrell; 

(Pages 73 - 
80) 

  Report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment 
Programmes Director  
 

  

 



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 

FRIDAY 26 MARCH, 2010. MINUTE NOS.113 AND 115 ARE NOT SUBJECT 

TO “CALL IN”. 

 

49 

CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE  

ON WEDNESDAY 17 MARCH 2010 

 
PRESENT: Councillor  Maher 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Hough and Ibbs 
 
 
109. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
 
110. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 
111. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 FEBRUARY, 2010  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2010, be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
 
112. DELIVERY OF STEPCLEVER-FUNDED PROJECTS IN THE 

2010-12 PERIOD  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of Planning and Economic 
Development Director that: informed of the contracts awarded to Sefton 
Council under the Stepclever Delivery Plan 2010-12; sought approval for a 
recruitment process for filling new posts that maximised redeployment and 
minimised recruitment; and approval for a revised structure and 
establishment for the Economic Regeneration Division of the Planning and 
Economic Regeneration Department. 
 
Attached to the report were four annexes that detailed the: Enterprise 
Gateway current staffing; Build Sefton current staffing; Step Up to Supply 
(Buy Side) Project current staffing; and Enterprise Gateway proposed 
staffing and context diagram. 
 
This was a key decision and was included on the Council’s Forward Plan 
of Key Decisions. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION- WEDNESDAY 17 MARCH 2010 
 

50 

RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Enterprise Gateway posts, as detailed within the report, be 

established;  
 
(2)  the organisation chart as detailed in annexe four be approved; and 
 
(3) the maximum use of redeployment procedures to fill vacancies 

within the new structure be approved, with market recruitment a last 
resort and requiring the permission of the Vacancy Panel. 

 
 
113. ADDITIONAL PITCH PROVISION FOR GYPSIES AND 

TRAVELLERS IN SEFTON  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the joint report of the Planning and 
Economic Development Director and the Neighbourhoods and Investment 
Programmes Director that explained the requirement on the local authority 
to secure additional pitch provision for gypsies and travellers; sought 
approval for the methodology for site appraisal and selection; explained 
the process and likely timescale for site appraisal and submission of an 
application for gypsy and traveller site grant; and sought delegated 
authority for the relevant Directors to make and submit an application for 
site grant should a suitable site (or sites) be identified, subject to 
subsequent endorsement by Cabinet. 
 
The Cabinet Member and Party Spokespersons asked a variety of 
questions and had a detailed discussion regarding the provision of 
additional pitch provision for Gypsies and Travellers in Sefton, which were 
answered by Officers. 
 
Attached as an annexe to the report was a Scoring Framework / 
Methodology for the appraisal and selection of potential Gypsy and 
Traveller sites in Sefton. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
(1) the report and the need to secure additional pitch provision (transit 

and permanent) for Gypsies and Travellers be noted;  
 
(2) the Cabinet be recommended to approve the methodology for site 

appraisal and selection as detailed within the report and its annexe;  
 
(3) the Cabinet be recommended to authorise the Neighbourhoods and 

Investment Programmes Director, in consultation with the Planning 
and Economic Development Director, to make minor changes to the 
scoring framework if early consultations with key 
partners/stakeholders show that this is necessary; and  

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 6



CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION- WEDNESDAY 17 MARCH 2010 
 

51 

(4) the Planning and Economic Development Director and the 
Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director be 
requested to draft a further report regarding potential sites. 

 
 
114. INFORMED ASSESSMENT OF THE ECONOMIC VIALIBILITY OF 

AFFORDABLE  HOUSING  IN SEFTON - CONSULTATION 

DRAFT  

 
Further to Minute No.188 of the meeting of the Planning Committee held 
on 10 March 2010, the Cabinet Member considered the report of the 
Planning and Economic Development Director of the findings of the draft 
Informed Assessment of the Economic Viability of Affordable Housing in 
Sefton Study and the intention to carry out a formal public and stakeholder 
consultation on the study. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the informed Assessment of the Economic Viability of Affordable 
Housing in Sefton Study – Consultation Draft report be noted 
 
 
115. JOINT STRATEGIC HOUSING LAND AVAILABILITY 

ASSESSMENT 2008 - FINAL REPORT  

 
Further to Minute No.187 of the meeting of the Planning Committee held 
on 10 March 2010, the Cabinet Member considered the report of the 
Planning and Economic Development Director that reported the key 
findings of the Joint Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Study 
2008, which was one of a number of key evidence gathering studies that 
had been undertaken to inform the Core Strategy process and to guide 
advice and decisions on individual housing proposals and planning 
applications.  
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the key findings of the Joint Strategic Housing Land Availability 

Assessment Study for Sefton be noted; 
 
(2) subject to (3) below, the key findings of the study to inform the 

emerging Core Strategy process be adopted and used to inform 
advice and decisions in relation to individual pre application 
proposals and planning applications which raise housing issues; 
and 

   
(3)  the Cabinet be recommended to endorse the key findings of the 

Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Study to inform the 
emerging Core Strategy process. 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



CABINET MEMBER - REGENERATION- WEDNESDAY 17 MARCH 2010 
 

52 

 
116. LOCAL RESILIENCE ACTION PLAN MONITORING  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and 
Investment Programmes Director that provided monitoring information on 
housing issues, as contained in the ‘Local Resilience Action Plan, 
Responding to the Recession’. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Local Resilience Action Plan Monitoring report be noted. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 8



 
 

  

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member Regeneration 
Cabinet 
 

DATE: 
 

14
th
 April 2010 

15
th
 April 2010 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

Compulsory Purchase Order and the purchase of new 
rights pursuant to Section 226(1)(a) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990(as amended by section 99 and 
Schedule 9 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004) and Section 13 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, of land and interests 
in the Bedford and Queens Road and Klondyke area of 
Bootle.  
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

Linacre & Litherland 

REPORT OF: 
 

Alan Lunt – Neighbourhoods & Investment Programmes 
Director 
Andy Wallis - Planning and Economic Regeneration 
Director 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Lee Payne – Programme Coordinator 
0151 934 4842 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
To update members on the change of title of the Compulsory Purchase Orders issued for Bedford 
Road/Queens Road Phase 3 and Klondyke Phase 1B as part of the Housing Market Renewal 
programme. 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
N/A 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
That members note the contents of this report. 
 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No. 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

Not appropriate 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Following the expiry of the call in period for the minutes of 
this meeting. 

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS:  
 
N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 
 

  

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

 

Financial: 
 
 

There are no financial implications. 

 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2010/ 
2011 
£ 

2011/ 
2012 
£ 

2012/ 
2013 
£ 

2013/ 
2014 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

Not applicable. 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

Not applicable. 

Asset Management: 
 
 
 

Not applicable. 

 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
 
FD 364 - The Interim Head of Corporate Finance and Information Services has been consulted and 
has no comments on this report. 
 
The views of the Council’s Legal Advisor on this matter, Hill Dickinson, were taken into account. 
 
The Interim Head of Corporate Legal Services  has also been consulted in the preparation of this 
report.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 10



 
 

  

 
 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 

Corporat
e 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  √  

2 Creating Safe Communities  √  

3 Jobs and Prosperity  √  

4 Improving Health and Well-Being  √  

5 Environmental Sustainability  √  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities  √  

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

 √  

8 Children and Young People 
 

 √  

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 
 

  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report concerns the use by Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council of its compulsory 

purchase powers under section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by Section 99 and Schedule 9 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004) and section 13 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to 
acquire property, land, interests, and new rights in the Bedford Road and Queens Road 
and Klondyke areas of Bootle. 

 
1.2 On the 6

th
 August 2009 Cabinet approved the issuing of CPO for the Bedford Road/Queens 

Road Phase 3 and Klondyke Phase 1B areas, and on the 11
th
 February 2010 the CPOs 

were issued. 
 
2.0        Change of CPO Title 

2.1 Because the Cabinet approval to issue the CPOs was in 2009 and the date of issue of the 
order was in 2010 the formal name which the CPOs will be known by has now changed to 
the following: 

 

• The Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (Bedford Road/Queens Road, Bootle, Phase 3) 
Compulsory Purchase Order 2010 

 

• The Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (Klondyke, Bootle, Phase 1B) Compulsory 
Purchase Order 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 12



 

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member Regeneration 
Cabinet 
Council  
 

DATE: 
 

14 April 2010 
15 April 2010 
13 May 2010 
 

SUBJECT: 
 

Enforced Sales Procedure and Property at 24 Lander Road,  
Litherland 
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

All 

REPORT OF: 
 

Alan Lunt – Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes 
Director 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Neil Davies -  Housing Market Renewal Division Strategy 
Manager 934 4837 
 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: To seek approval to the new ‘Enforced Sales’ Procedure, and in 
particular to utilise this procedure in respect of a long-term empty property at 24 Lander 
Road, Litherland. 
 
 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
Cabinet has delegated authority to make decisions in respect of the adoption of such 
policies  
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That Cabinet Member Regeneration notes the report 
       
 
That Cabinet 

1. Approves the use of Enforced Sale powers and the Policy and Procedures as set 
out in the attached Guide. 

2. Recommends the Council to amend the Constitution so that the Cabinet Member -
Regeneration has delegated powers to authorise the use of the Enforced Sales 
Procedure 

3. Approves the use of the Enforced Sales Procedure in respect of the property at 24 
Lander Road, Litherland. 

 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

No 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Upon expiry of the call-in period of the Cabinet 
Meeting. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



 

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: The Council has already introduced a new Empty Property 
Strategy, which outlines various options to attempt to return empty homes back into use. 
 
In the case of 24 Lander Road, enforcement notices and works in default have been 
carried out in the past, to control the negative effects of dilapidation caused by this 
property. However, the owner has never responded to these actions and the house 
remains empty. The Council could exercise its use of Compulsory Purchase Powers, but 
in this instance Enforced Sale is considered the most appropriate option to take, 
particularly to recoup the debts owed. Alternatively the Council could choose to take no 
further action, but the house would remain empty and debts to the Council would remain 
owed. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

The Empty Properties Strategy was approved by 
Cabinet in October 2009, which included the use of 
‘Enforced Sales’ as one of a number of enforcement 
tools the Council may utilise. 

Financial: Successful Enforced Sales will generate payments of 
historic debts that are owed due to enforcement 
actions and work in default undertaken on properties.  
In the case of 24 Lander Rd, debts totalling £13,411 
will be repaid from the sale proceeds. However, the 
Council may need to provide a grant to support 
refurbishment of the property and its return to use as 
a social housing unit, for which the Council will 
receive tenancy nomination rights. The cost of any 
such grant can be met from existing capital resources. 
 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009 
2010 
£ 

2010/ 
2011 
£ 

2011/ 
2012 
£ 

2012/ 
2013 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources (HMR & WNF)     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? HMR March 2011 

How will the service be funded post expiry? No ongoing service 

implications 

Agenda Item 5

Page 14



 

 
Legal: 
 
 

The Council will be exercising its legal powers under 
the Law of Property Act 1925, which gives the Council 
the statutory power to recover costs it has incurred 
through works in default by enabling the sale of a 
property to an organisation committed to ensuring it is 
improved and occupied. 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

During the Enforced Sales Process the property 
owner may repay the debts owed. While this would 
satisfy one objective (debt repayment) it does not 
necessarily mean that the owner will refurbish a 
property or return it to use and occupation 

Asset Management: 
 
 

The procedure involves the Council facilitating the 
sale of a privately owned property to a third party. 
Hence there are no implications for the Council’s 
Asset Management, as properties are not owned by 
the Council 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
The Empty Homes Strategy was the subject of stakeholder consultations prior to its 
approval.  
The property at 24 Lander Rd has been a priority issue and a topic of on-going 
consultation with local residents groups. 
FD 359 - The Head of Corporate Finance & Information Services has been consulted and 
his comments have been incorporated into this report 
 

 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 

Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative  
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  �  

2 Creating Safe Communities �   

3 Jobs and Prosperity  �  

4 Improving Health and Well-Being    

5 Environmental Sustainability �   

6 Creating Inclusive Communities    

7 Improving the Quality of Council 
Services and Strengthening local 
Democracy 

 �  

8 Children and Young People 
 

 �  

 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT 
Empty Property Strategy (Housing) approved by Cabinet on the 29th October 2009. 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



 

1. Background 
 

1.1. Cabinet approved a new Empty Property (Housing) Strategy at its meeting of the 29th 
October 2009. The Strategy sets out a number of Enforcement Actions, which are 
available for the Council to utilise within existing legal powers. However, the report also 
noted that “….implementation (of the strategy) will require a number of procedures and 
new practices to be developed by officers.” 

 
1.2 Enforced Sales is a new practice for Sefton, though it has been used by a number of 

Councils across the country. It is a procedure primarily designed to enable Councils to 
recover outstanding debts, created by certain enforcement actions that result in land 
charges against a property. However, it also provides a method for getting long-term, 
problematic empty properties back into use. 

 
1.3 Officers have produced a new Standard Operating Procedure, attached to this report, 

which provides a complete description of the process and roles involved. Given that this 
is a new procedure, officers have brought this to the attention of Cabinet for approval, 
and to avoid any future challenges from property owners on the basis that the Council 
has not fully considered and approved it’s policy and procedures in respect of Enforced 
Sales. 

 
2. Empty Property at 24 Lander Road, Litherland 

 
 

2.1 This property has been vacant since about 1981. The property is not registered at the 
Land Registry, but local investigations have revealed the identity of the person believed 
to be the legal owner. A number of lines of investigation, over many years, have been 
pursued to try and trace the owner, including via known family members. However, all of 
these efforts have so far failed. 

 
2.2 Over the long period that the property has been vacant, it has been subject to break-ins, 

vandalism, infestation, fly-tipping, all of which have had a detrimental affect on 
neighbours and the general neighbourhood. The Council has had to intervene to take 
various actions to control the negative impact of this property. This has resulted in 
numerous notices being served, and works in default undertaken. 

 
2.3 A large number of local land charges are recorded against this property. In this instance 

those charges resulting from service of Statutory notice under Section 4 of the 
Prevention of Damages by Pests Act 1949, over the past 12 years will be recoverable. It 
should be noted that there are other land charges, which are either older than 12 years, 
or served under ‘non-qualifying’ legislation, which are not recoverable using this 
procedure. There are seven land charges which will be recoverable, the total value of 
which is £13,411. 
 

2.4. Given the level of debt owed to the Council, our inability to trace the property owner, the 
length of time the property has been vacant and the condition of the property, Enforced 
Sale is considered to be the most appropriate course of action to take. 

 
2.5. In this instance it is likely that a sale will be made to a partner HMR Neighbourhood 

RSL. A further, more detailed report will be submitted to Cabinet Member Regeneration 
on these arrangements. However, early feasibility has indicated that a Council grant 
towards the cost of refurbishment to bring the property back into use, might be required. 
External Housing Market Renewal Capital Funding could be made available to support 
the Council grant. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 16



 

2.6. Should the enforced sale be completed to a partner RSL, they would be required to 
completely refurbish the property and bring it back into use as a social rented home, 
which would be made available to a Council waiting list nominee. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ENFORCED SALE 
 
 

POLICY AND  
STANDARD OPERATING 

PROCEDURE 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 18



 

Introduction 
 
Enforced sale is a procedure that is primarily designed to enable councils to recover 
outstanding debts, created by actions that result in a land charge against a property.  
However, it also provides a method for getting long term problematic properties back 
into use and has been adopted by a number of Councils across the country as an 
effective was of dealing with empty properties. 
 
There are social and financial benefits from adopting the enforced sales procedure.  By 
selling a property that is in a derelict condition to a new owner, there is a likelihood the 
new owner will refurbish the property and this increases the chances that it will become 
inhabited again.  Financial charges, which could otherwise prove impossible to recover, 
can be discharged out of the proceeds of sale.  It is also hoped that when empty 
property owners become aware of this initiative they may maintain their properties in a 
reasonable state and condition resulting in less time spent by the local authority in 
having to deal with this problem. 
 
A cross departmental enforced sales working group will be created to finalise 
procedural arrangement details within the Enforced Sales Policy and Standard 
Operating Procedure.  The group will also identify suitable property, take appropriate 
action and identify existing debts.  The group will consist of Officers from 
Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes, Planning, Building Control, Legal and 
Finance Departments. 
 
 
Limitations of the Procedure 
 
The issues surrounding the empty condition of a property vary so widely that no single 
measure offers a tailor made solution. Even where the following criteria can be met, it is 
necessary to consider how likely the Enforced Sales Procedure is to achieve the 
desired outcome and to ask whether other courses of action might be more suitable. 
 
The Enforced Sales Procedure can be followed even where the owner cannot be traced 
and even where the property has changed hands – so long as the relevant debt 
remains. 
 
The procedure may be used to recover debt arising from the exercise of any statutory 
powers that: - 

• Confer a charge on all the estates and interests in the property 

• Confer Law of Property rights (i.e. grant the powers and remedies available as if 
the charge had been created by deed). 

 
Any such charge will bind any prior charges affecting the property, i.e. the council’s 
charge will have a priority over other charges. However, covenants and easements over 
the property will not be so bound. 
 
If the statutory powers under which the debt has arisen do not confer the above-
mentioned rights, then it will be necessary to consider whether Section 7 of the Local 
Land Charges Act 1975 applies. If it does, then the procedure may still be used, but 

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



 

only the estate of the offending party will be bound, not all the states and interests in the 
property. Other charges may therefore take priority over the council’s charge. 
 
Principally, the statutory powers that will enable the procedure to be used are: - 

• Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 

• Housing Act 1985 

• Building Act 1984 

• Public Health Act 1936 

• Public Health Act 1961 

• Environmental Protection Act 1990 
Actions in relation to the service of statutory notices under these provisions are most 
likely to have given rise to the relevant debt(s).  
 
Additionally, the following criteria will be applied when considering whether to instigate 
the procedure: - 

• The principle sum of the original work carried out in default must be at least 
£300. (This can be the total of a number of combined principle sums) 

• The statutory notices must have been served correctly. Refer to the relevant 
statute for the requirements relating to service.  All copy notices must have been 
stamped and signed by the serving officer. The procedure cannot be employed if 
the notices have not been served in this manner. (If the serving officer is still 
employed by the council, then it may be possible to ask them to rectify the 
notice). 

• The serving officer must complete a ‘Record of Service of Notice’ form on service 
of the statutory notice. 

• There should be no proposed CPO action within a 2-year period. 

• The property must not be the subject of any bankruptcy action. (This would 
usually be noted on the title). 

 
It should be noted that the right to enforce a sale in order to recover land charges is 
limited by section 20 of the Limitation Act to 12 years from when the right to receive the 
money accrued, not from when the demand was sent out. However, where the owner 
has attempted to repay and any amount has been received, the 12 year period starts 
afresh from that date.  
 
 
Properties shown as Unregistered using the On-line Link to the Land Registry 
The following key considerations arise in such cases: - 

• Where the statutory charge does not bind all the estates and interests in the 
property, it would probably be inadvisable to proceed unless it is certain that 
there are no prior charges and that the statutory charge binds the freehold or a 
long lease. 

• It will be necessary for the eventual purchaser of the property to apply for first 
registration of the title. Difficulties might arise in determining the extent of the 
land to be registered and in identifying the encumbrances affecting the property. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 20



 

Human Rights Act 1998 
 
Consideration of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 must be taken by the 
Council.  In particular, Part 1, Article 8 “the right to respect for… private and family 
life…, home and… correspondence”, and Protocol 1, Article 1 “peaceful enjoyment of 
… possessions”, need to be balanced against the general benefits and rights of 
neighbours and the surrounding community. 
 
A statement that the intended action of the Council in exercising its power of sale is 
considered to be proportionate, in accordance with the Act, should be included in letters 
to the Owner and Charges.  This will be covered by correspondence issued by Legal 
Services. 
 
 
Pre-Action to ESP 
 
Other, more appropriate, types of action, must always be a consideration prior to 
pursuing ESP.  The use of ESP (as well as Compulsory Purchase) should be seen as a 
means of last resort and it is expected that all informal and formal action will have been 
taken and exhausted by the Council in order to recover debt and to resolve the 
existence of the empty property and its associated problems. 
 
The first priority should is always to try and trace owners of empty property and to make 
contact with them.  Every effort is made to try and engage with the owners and to offer 
them advice and assistance in getting their property back into use.  Evidence has 
shown that early intervention offering support and guidance to property owners can 
prove very useful in preventing longer-term properties becoming more problematic.  
Indeed in most cases solutions reached through negotiation and agreement are 
preferable to enforcement related solutions that are, by their nature, more difficult, 
expensive and time consuming to undertake. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



 

Neighbourhoods and Investment Department (NIPD)/ Case Officer Role 
 

1. Identify potential properties for enforced sales 
a. Proactive 
b. Reactive 

 
2. Is property suitable for enforced sales 

a. Is the property empty 
b. Is property registered at land registry 

i. If not registered or to check for other interested parties carry out 
the following additional checks: 

• Council tax records 

• Sending or affixing a letter to the property concerned 

• Make enquiries with neighbours 

• Make enquiries with other departments who may have been 
involved with the property / historical information 

• Check electoral registered 
c. Does property have financial local land charges registered against it (at 

least £1,000) 
 

3. Compile a background file. 
a. This needs to contain copies of:  

i. All statutory notice served prior to the Council carrying out the 
necessary works in default together with the details as to how the 
notices were served 

ii. The record of service of notice form 
iii. The work instructions to the contractor for the work to be carried 

out 
iv. All invoices from the contactors along with breakdown of labour 

and material charges 
b. These documents are filed in reference number, together with an account 

summary sheet which shows what is in the file, the notice number and the 
amount of financial charge, excluding interest, in each case. 

c. Also in the file are copies of any ownership details, local land charge 
details and any correspondence sent or received relevant to the property.  

 
4. The Enforced Sales Group (NIPD, Finance, Legal Officers) should now agree 

whether or not to develop the process further.   
 

5. Re-service of notices. 
a. All the notices originally served and notices of demand for payment are 

re-served on the property (with covering letter - Appendix 1).  This will 
ensure that an owner or interested party is made aware of the debt and 
also ensures that there is adequate evidence available.  Notices will be 
served by the following methods: 

i. One must be served on the listed owner or owners by first class 
post, or by hand, or by affixing it to the property and 

ii. One must be posted to any other address(es) shown on the Land 
Registry and to any other interested party of which the Council is 
aware. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 22



 

iii. Copies must be stamped and signed by the serving officer. 
iv. A ‘Record of Service of Notice’ form must be completed for each by 

the serving officer.  
v. A photograph must be taken as evidence of any notices affixed to 

the property and weekly visits should be made in order to replace 
any notices that have been torn down. 

b. Also at this point any notices needed to be served under section 81A 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 are served (see Appendix 2 for sample 
81A). 

 
 

6. Section 103 notice. 
a. After a period of 28 days if no appeal (as to the Section 81A notice) or 

payment is made, a notice pursuant to Section 103 of the Law of Property 
Act 1925 is then served.  This notice gives the owner three months to 
repay the debt. 

b. The property cannot be sold until the Section 103 notice has expired, but 
during this time the procedure is progressed through the various stages 
as far as possible. 

c. The Section 103 Notices are divided into 2 categories: 
i. Where notices pursuant to Environmental Protection Act 1990 have 
been served (see Appendix 3). 

ii. Where no notices pursuant to Environmental Protection Act 1990 
have been served (see appendix 4). 

d. When serving the notices, a photograph is taken of the property and 
copies of all the notices served and confirmation of the method of service 
are attached to the property file and onto the Flare database. 

 
7. Authorisation 

a. Following the expiry of the 3 month period a check needs to be made with 
the Debt Recovery Team to ascertain whether or not the debt has been 
paid. 

b. If the debt has not been paid the officer must review the case with the 
Section Manager.  The review should include consideration of whether the 
property should be sold to a preferred owner or whether it should be sold 
at auction. 

c. If following this review, it is decided that the Enforced Sales Procedure 
should be followed to its conclusion, the Officer / Section Manager must 
prepare an authorisation form which, together with the background file, is 
passed to the Director of Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes 
for authorisation under delegated powers (this authority is delegated to 
Cabinet Member Regeneration by resolution of the Council approval to 
this Procedure). 

d. Authorisation and file returned to Case Officer. 
 

6. The Solicitor / Debt Recovery Team is instructed 
a. A copy of the authorisation and the file are then forwarded to the 

appropriate Debt Recovery Team / Legal Team. 
b. The Legal team are responsible at this stage to send an instruction to the 

Debt Recovery Team to: 

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



 

i. Suspend all legal action regarding the debt 
ii. Check the account numbers of the outstanding debts to make sure 

no payments have been received to date. 
c. Case Officers should continue to make on-going checks at weekly 

intervals in order to ensure no re-payment has been made. 
 
 
 
 
Solicitors role when the property is registered at Land Registry 
 

7. Check the charges 
a. Upon receipt of the file from the NIPD Case Officer, go through the Works 

in Default file and make a list of all the charges.  A check then needs to be 
carried out to find out which charges are still outstanding. 

b. This is done as there are many ways debts can be paid and there is little 
point in undertaking work where a charge has been repaid. 

c. Checks should also be made that the statutory notices have been 
correctly served. 

 
8. Write to all interested parties 

a. If charges are still outstanding a letter (see appendix 7) is sent to all 
persons on the register who have an interest in the property advising them 
of the position.  This will include others who have a charge registered 
against the property.  

b. The letter must be copied to the Case Officer for information, who must 
take a photograph of any notices affixed to the property and carry out 
weekly visits in order to replace any notices that may have been torn 
down. 

c. This letter gives the owner and any other interested parties fair notice of 
the steps the Local Authority proposes to take.  It is accepted that in most 
cases the whereabouts of the owner will be unknown.  Even so a letter 
addressed to the property and any other address(es) is sent in an attempt 
to notify the owner.  Every attempt is made to give such persons notice of 
the local Authorities proposals and ample opportunity to repay the debt. 

d. A period of 21 / 28 days is allowed for the persons served to respond. 
 

9. Registration of charge (this may alter depending on the reaction received from 
Land Reg – this procedure is one currently used by Manchester with the Lytham 
District Land Reg) 

a. If there is no response to the letter and no debts have been repaid then a 
charge must now be registered with the Land Registry.   

b. A resolution for the relevant charge(s) must be prepared and be sealed by 
the Council (see appendix 8).  This must record: 

i. The statutory provisions 
ii. The service of the necessary notices 
iii. What work was done and when 
iv. The registration of the charge in the register of local land charges 

and claims priority over all estates and interests 

Agenda Item 5

Page 24



 

v. A certificate made by the council that it has all the necessary rights 
and powers to make the application for registration of the charges 
and that it has taken all appropriate steps in accordance with the 
relevant statute. 

c. An application (form AP1) (see Appendix 9 for sample copy) must be 
prepared for registration of the charge.  The current registration fee is £40 
per charge provided each charge does not exceed £100,000.  (in practice 
it is only necessary to register a single charge and there may be benefit in 
so doing since there is a cost of £40 per charge registered.  On the other 
hand, if the owner elects to repay the debt, then he is only bound to pay 
the charge that has been registered) 

d. Form SC (see appendix 10 for sample copy) must also be completed in 
order to claim priority in favour of the council’s charge over any existing 
charge registered against the title. 

e. The completed application must be sent to Land Registry.  This comprises 
of: 

i. A covering letter (see appendix 11) 
ii. The sealed and dated resolutions together with a certified copy of 

each resolution 
iii. The land/charge certificate or copies of the correspondence 

requesting the same 
iv. Completed form SC 

f. Confirmation of the application must be provided to the Housing Officer. 
 

10. The charges are registered 
a. Notification of completion of the registration is received from Land 

Registry on completion of the registration – arrangements are then made 
for the sale of the property. 

b. At this point: 
i. A check is made that the charges have not been paid 
ii. The Case Officer must be informed of the registration and must be 

asked whether the property is to be sold at auction or to a preferred 
purchaser. 

c. Letters are then sent to the owners and interested parties advising them 
that the Council’s charges are registered and it is the Council’s intention to 
pursue a sale of the property (see appendix 12).  This gives the owner 
and interested parties notice of the Council’s intentions so that they 
cannot claim steps were not taken to notify them. 

d. The letter must be copied to the Case Officer for information and they 
must take a photograph as evidence of any notices affixed to the property 
and weekly visits should be made in order to replace any notices that 
have been torn down. 

 
 
Solicitors role when the property is NOT registered at Land Registry 
 

11.  Check the charges 
a. Upon receipt of the file from the (NIPD) case officer, go through the Works 

in Default file and make a list of all the charges.  A check then needs to be 
carried out to find out which charges are still outstanding. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 

b. This is done as there are many ways debts can be paid and there is little 
point in undertaking work where a charge has been repaid. 

c. Checks should also be made that the statutory notices have been 
correctly served. 

 
12.  Check that the property is not registered 

a. A search of the index map must be undertaken at the Land Registry to 
ensure that the property is not registered.  The search must also include 
the adjoining properties.  This might reveal what incumbrances affect the 
property and also the extent/limits of the title of the property in question. 

b. The extent of the property bound by the charge and that can be sold is 
ascertained by applying the facts to each case, and the particular 
statutory provisions that have given rise to the Local Land Charge.  The 
position is clear in the case of Charges which arise under the following 
legislation.  Thus, enforced sales should be able to proceed in these 
cases: 

i. Public Health Act 1936, Section 291 
ii. Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 
iii. Building Act 1984, Section 107 

 
13. Try to ascertain what incumbrances affect the property 

a. Using any information found during this investigation and any information 
available as to the name(s) of the owner, the purported owner or any 
other interested party, a Land Charges Act 1972 search must then be 
carried out against the name of any such person(s) and the property 
concerned.  This may produce clues as to incumbrances affecting the 
property e.g. easements, covenants and charges. 

i. Note: where the statutory charge binds all the estates and interests 
in the property, any registered charges will be of little significance, 
other than for the purpose of giving notice to any chargee as to the 
council’s intentions.  HOWEVER, where this is not the case, then it 
would probably be inadvisable to proceed unless it is certain that 
there are no prior charges and that the statutory charge binds the 
freehold or a long lease. 

ii. As stated above, if any of the adjoining properties are registered, it 
may be possible to ascertain what incumbrances affect the same.  
This may give a purchaser some clues as to the matters affecting 
the property and make the property more marketable.  The 
alternative is that no such steps are taken and the purchaser is 
made aware, via the contract terms, that such is the case.  In both 
cases though, the contract for sale will need to contain special 
conditions covering the position. 

 
14.  Write to all interested parties 

a.  If the searches provide any information as to the identity or whereabouts 
of the owner(s) or other interested parties, or such information is already 
available, a letter is now sent to all persons having an interest in the 
property in order to advise them of the position see appendixes 6 & 7).  
This will include others who have a charge registered against the 
property.  The owners copy must be: 

Agenda Item 5

Page 26



 

i. Delivered to the Owner or Owners by post, or by hand or should be 
affixed to the property and 

ii. Must be posted to any other address(es) shown on the Land 
Registry.  

b. The letter must be copied to the Case Officer for information, who must 
take a photograph of any notices affixed to the property and carry out 
weekly visits in order to replace any notices that may have been torn 
down. 

 
15.  Enquiries are completed 

a. If either: 
i. No information is found as to the identity or whereabouts of the 
owner(s) or other interested parties or 

ii. There is not reply within 21 days to the letter above 
The property is put forward for sale.  The contract for sale will need to 
contain special conditions. 

 
 
Selling the empty property – Valuation/Property Services 
 

16.  Methods of selling the empty property 
a. Once the Director of Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes has 

been advised that the charges have been registered against the title 
and/or that the property can be put forward for sale, the Director considers 
how the sale is to be effected and instructs the relevant Head of 
Valuations and Property Services accordingly.  Other than where there is 
particular justification, sale at auction will be the preferred option. 

b. If choosing sale by private treaty to a preferred purchaser then 
commission two independent valuations of the property and have the 
Council’s surveyor to vet the valuations to determine the sale price. Sales 
to a preferred purchaser should require approval to be obtained from the 
appropriate Cabinet Member. 

c. Whatever the method of sale a valuation is undertaken by the local 
authority’s surveyor. 

 
17.  Contract 

a. For a registered property the contract for sale will be the same as any 
contract for sale by a mortgagee. 

b. In the case of an unregistered property there will probably be no deeds or 
details of any incumbrances affecting the property and the contract for 
sale need to reflect this. 

i. In such cases the form of the resolution prepared in respect or 
registered land is incorporated into the contract as a recital (see eg 
in appendix 13 for form of suggested special conditions of sale). 

ii. On completion of the sale the Land Registry require the Council to 
provide a letter containing a certification by the Council that it has 
all the necessary rights and powers to dispose of the property and 
that it has taken all appropriate steps in accordance with the 
relevant statute (appendix 14).  

Agenda Item 5

Page 27



 

iii. It will be necessary to make the purchaser’s solicitor aware that the 
letter must be submitted with their client’s application for first 
registration. 

iv. As far as the incumbrances are concerned, the Land Registry will 
probably make a ‘protective entry’ on the register to the effect that 
the property is subject to such incumbrances as affect the same at 
the date of the registration, no details having been provided on first 
registration. 

 
18.  Title 

a. Where the title deeds have not been recovered the following should be 
borne in mind: 

i. Registered titles: copies can be obtained of the documents referred 
to on the title from the Land Registry.  Where they are not 
available, include an appropriate clause in the contract to cover the 
position. 

ii. Unregistered titles: There will probably be no deeds or details of 
the incumbrances affecting the property. 

 
19.  Check charges 

a. Immediately prior to auction/exchange of contracts a further check is 
made to ascertain whether the charges have been repaid. 

 
20. Post sale 

a. The post sale procedure is to be generally the same as that for a normal 
sale. 

b. The following deductions will be made from the proceeds of the sale: 
i. Any auctioneer’s fee 
ii. The legal fee 
iii. The surveyor’s fee 
iv. NIPDepartments administration fee 
v. The outstanding charges 

These sums will be processed in the same manner as for a normal sale. 
c. If the debts are greater than the proceeds of sale, consider whether the 

fees are to  
have first call on the proceeds or not.  The auctioneer’s fees will have to 
be paid in any event and the other fees should also have first call on the 
proceeds.  Any remaining debt is taken of the property and placed against 
the former owner as a personal debt, to be pursued in the normal manner 
if economically viable. 
d.  If any balance remains from the proceeds of the sale and the     
whereabouts of the owner/the person first entitled is known, then the 
balance is paid in the normal way. 
e.  If, as is most likely, the owner’s whereabouts are not known, then the 
balance must   be paid into an interest bearing account.  If no claim is 
then made within a period of 12 years, the money reverts to the Council. 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 28



 

  Neighbourhoods and 
Investment Programmes 
Department 

 Magdalen House 
 30 Trinity Road 
 Bootle 
 Merseyside L20 3NJ 
  
 Date:  
 Our Ref:  
 Your Ref:  
  
 Please contact:  
 Contact Number: 0151 934 4712 
 Fax No: 0151 394 4276 
 e-mail:  
 
Dear, 
 
Property Address:  
Subject:  
 
I am writing to as our records show/suggest that you have an interest in the above 
vacant property. 
 
On the dates shown below notices were served upon you requiring you to undertake 
work in order to remedy unsatisfactory circumstances.  Because you did not comply 
with the Notice, the Council arranged for the work to be carried out in default once it 
had expired.  The cost of the work totals £--- excluding interest.  This is now a debt 
which you owe the City Council and one which comprises a local land charge attached 
to the property. 
 

Date of Notice Legislation Date of Work Amount 

    

    

    

 
 
Please note that, should you fail to settle these outstanding debts, or contact the 
Council within 28 days to discuss this matter, the Council may serve on you a Notice 
under Section 103 (1) of the Law of Property Act 1925 which would advise you of its 
intention to sell the above property or some part of such property. 
 
Please also note that the Council will exercise its right to charge interest at a rate of not 
more than 2% above the current Bank of England base rate, on any sums that are 
owed to it.  For any works where a Section 81a Notice applies, interest will run from the 
date of service of such Notice; in all other cases, interest will run from the date of 
service of the aforementioned Section 103 (1) Notice should it be necessary to serve 
such Notice. 

Appendix 1 

Agenda Item 5

Page 29



 

 
 
 

 
 
Please be advised that you should contact the Officer named at the top of this letter, as 
my Finance Department will not take payment without my authorisation from that 
named officer.   
 
This letter has been sent to all those who have, or appear to have, an interest in the 
above property. 
 
 
    
Yours faithfully,  
 

 

 
 

Minicom: 0151 934 
4657 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 30



 

Notice No:    «refno»                                           By Hand 
 

METROPOLITAN BOROUGH OF SEFTON 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT 1990, SECTION 81A 
 
To: «nadname»  
         «nadaddr2»  
         «nadaddr3»  
         «nadaddr5» 
 
On (date) the Council served on you a Notice under Section 80 of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 (‘the Act’) requiring the execution of certain works and the taking of such other steps 
in relation to the above property to abate the nuisance or prohibit or restrict its occurence or 
reccurance arising from the defective state of such property. 
 
You failed to comply with such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out such works and 
took such steps as aforesaid at a total cost to the Council of (£       ).  This is the sum 
recoverable by the Council pursuant to Section 81(4) of the Act in respect of the above Notice 
and this Notice is given pursuant to Section 81A of the Act. 
 
I am required by Subsection 81A(2) of the Act to advise you that, pursuant to Subsection 81A(1) 
thereof, where any expenses are recoverable under Section 81(4) of the Act from a person who is the 
owner of the premises there mentioned and the local authority serves a Notice on him under Section 
81A of the Act (pursuant to which this Notice is given): 
 
(a) the expenses shall carry interest, at such reasonable rate as the local authority may determine, 

from the date of service of the Notice until the whole amount is paid, and 
(b) subject to the provision of Section 81A of the Act, the expenses and accrued interest shall be a 

charge on the premises. 
 
The rate of interest payable is determined by the Council as referred to in (a) above and varies from 
time to time. 
 
I am further required to advise you of the provisions of Subsections 81A(4) to (6) of the Act which are 
as follows: 
 
(4) Subject to any Order under Subsection (7)(b) or (c) below, the amount of any expenses specified 

in a Notice under this Section and the accrued interest shall be a charge on the premises: 
(a) as from the end of the period of 21 days beginning with the date of service of the Notice, or 
(b) where an appeal is brought under Subsection (6) below, as from the final determination of the 

appeal, until the expenses and interest are recovered. 
 
(5) for the purposes of Subsection (4) above, the withdrawal of an appeal has the same effect as a 

final determination of the appeal. 
 
(6) a person served with a Notice of copy of a Notice under this Section may appeal against the 

Notice to the County Court within a period of 21 days beginning with the date of service. 
 
If you are in any doubt as to the effect of this Notice, you should take legal advice. 
Dated  Signed  
                          Environmental Health Officer 
 
Environmental Protection Department 
«offadd1»  
«offadd2»  
«offadd3»   
«offadd5» 

Appendix 2 Agenda Item 5

Page 31



 

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
NOTICE UNDER SECTION 103 (1) OF THE LAW OF PROPERTY ACT 1925/ LETTER 

BEFORE ACTION (WHERE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT APPLIES) 
RELATING TO: 

 
 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under Section 80 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 (“the Act”) requiring you to carry out certain works to the above 
property. You failed to comply with such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out 
such works at a total cost to the Council of £                 . 
 
This is now a debt that is due to Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council as well as a Local 
Land Charge attaching to the above property. Also, interest is now accruing on such 
amount at the current statutory rate. 
 
On the date the Council gave you Notice under Section 81A of the Act and the period of 
21 days referred to in Subsections 81A (4) (a) and (6) having elapsed and no appeal 
against that Notice having been made pursuant to the said Subsection 81A (6) then by 
virtue of the provisions of Subsection 81A (4) of the Act:  
 

1. The expenses incurred by the Council as referred to above and the accrued interest 
have become a charge on the above property and 

2. The Council has for the purpose of enforcing the said charge by virtue of 
Subsection 81A (8) of the Act all the same powers and remedies under the Law of 
Property Act 1925, and otherwise, as if it were a mortgagee by deed having powers 
of sale and lease, of accepting surrenders of leases and of appointing a receiver. 

 
The Council now requires you to pay to it immediately the above amount with the interest 
owing in respect of it on the date of payment. If you do not pay the amounts due, the 
Council, without further Notice, can: 
 

(1) If the debt is not paid within 28 days from the service of this Notice commence 
proceedings in the County Court for the recovery of the debt or   

(2) If the debt is not paid within three months from the date of service of this Notice sell 
the above property or some part of such property. 

 
Please note that the Council is legally obliged to give you Notice pursuant to Section 103 
(1) of the Law of Property Act 1925 if it chooses the option in point (2) above and this letter 
constitutes such a Notice. 
 
I would remind you that once again you are required to settle the amounts due to the Local 
Authority and it is important that you contact me within 28 days to advise me how you 
intend to proceed. 
 
Please note that you must only attempt to settle this matter after contacting me, as my 
Finance Department will not take payment without my authorisation and you may incur 
extra charges through the delay. 
 
If you are in doubt as to the effect of this Notice you should take legal advice. 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 3 Agenda Item 5

Page 32



Page 2 of 46 

 
 
 
 
 

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
NOTICE UNDER SECTION 103 (1) OF THE LAW OF PROPERTY ACT 1925/ LETTER 

BEFORE ACTION (WHERE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT DOES NOT 
APPLY) RELATING TO: 

 
 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under the provision of [  ] requiring you 
to carry out certain works to the above property. You failed to comply with such Notice and 
the Council, in default, carried out such works at a total cost to the Council of £                 . 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under the provision of [  ] as above 
requiring you to carry out certain works to the above property. You failed to comply with 
such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out such works at a total cost to the 
Council of £                 . 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under the provision of [  ] as above 
requiring you to carry out certain works to the above property. You failed to comply with 
such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out such works at a total cost to the 
Council of £                 . 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under the provision of [  ] as above 
requiring you to carry out certain works to the above property. You failed to comply with 
such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out such works at a total cost to the 
Council of £                 . 
 
On the              , the Council served on you Notice under the provision of [  ] as above 
requiring you to carry out certain works to the above property. You failed to comply with 
such Notice and the Council, in default, carried out such works at a total cost to the 
Council of £                 . 
 
These are now debts that are due to Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council as well as Local 
Land Charges attaching to the above property. Also, interest is now accruing on such 
amount at the current statutory rate. 
 
By virtue of the above statue(s), the debts due to the Council have, from the date of 
completion of the said works, taken effect, until recovered, as charges on the above 
property and the Council has all the same powers and remedies under the Law of Property 
Act 1925 and otherwise, as if it was a mortgagee by deed having powers of sale and 
lease, of accepting surrenders of leases and of appointing a receiver. 
 
The Council now requires you to pay to it immediately the above amount with the interest 
owing in respect of it on the date of payment. If you do not pay the amounts due, the 
Council, without further Notice, can: 
 

(3) If the debt is not paid within 28 days from the service of this Notice commence 
proceedings in the County Court for the recovery of the debt or   

(4) If the debt is not paid within three months from the date of service of this Notice sell 
the above property or some part of such property. 

 

Appendix 4 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



Page 3 of 46 

Please note that the Council is legally obliged to give you Notice pursuant to Section 103 
(1) of the Law of Property Act 1925 if it chooses the option in point (2) above and this letter 
constitutes such a Notice. 
 
I would remind you that once again you are required to settle the amounts due to the Local 
Authority and it is important that you contact me within 28 days to advise me how you 
intend to proceed. 
 
Please note that you must only attempt to settle this matter after contacting me, as my 
Finance Department will not take payment without my authorisation and you may incur 
extra charges through the delay. 
 
If you are in doubt as to the effect of this Notice you should take legal advice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 34



Page 4 of 46 

Draft resolution applying to Section 76, Building Act 1984         Appendix 5 
 

BUILDING ACT 1984 
 
Property Address: 
 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough 

1. WHEREAS Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (‘the Council’) is a ‘local authority’ 
within the meaning of S.126 of the Building Act 1984 (‘the Act’). 

 
2. AND WHEREAS a local authority, if it considers that any premises are in such a 

state as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance, and unreasonable delay in 
remedying that defective state would be occasioned by following the procedure 
prescribed by S.80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1980 may, under S.76 of 
the Act, serve notice on the owner or occupier of those premises stating that the 
local authority intend to remedy the defective state and may do so, subject to there 
being no counter-notice  served by the owner or occupier. 

 
3. AND WHEREAS a notice under Section 76 of the Act is to be served in accordance 

with Section 94 of the Act. 
 

4. AND WHEREAS the expense of such works may, by virtue of Subsection (12) of 
S.76 of the Act, be recovered from the owner or occupier of the premises and such 
expense plus interest thereon, by virtue of S.107 of the Act, from the date of 
completion of the works shall, until recovered, be a charge upon the premises and 
all estates and interests in them and gives a local authority, for the purposes of 
enforcing such a charge, all the powers and remedies under the law of Property Act 
1925 and otherwise as if they were mortgagees by deed. 

 
5. AND WHEREAS such charge is, by virtue of S.1(1)(a) of the Local Land Charges 

Act 1975, registerable as a local land charge. 
 

6. AND WHEREAS under S.7 of the Local Land Charges Act 1975 a local land charge 
falling within the aforementioned S.1(1)(a) takes effect as if it had been created by 
deed of charge by way of legal mortgage within the meaning of the Law of Property 
Act 1925, but without prejudice to the priority of the charge. 

 
7. AND WHEREAS S.101 of the Law of Property Act 1925 provides that a mortgagee 

by deed shall have inter alia the power of sale of the property so mortgaged. 
 

8. AND WHEREAS pursuant to a notice dated [  ] the Council gave notice to 
the owner or owners of the property known as [   ] (‘the Premises’) 
under Section 76 of the Act by serving the notice in accordance with Section 94 of 
the Act by 

 
 

ALTERNATIVE 1 addressing the notice to [   ] and delivering it to that 
person and/or 

 
 

ALTERNATIVE 2 addressing the notice to [    ] and leaving it or 
sending it in a prepaid letter addressed to that person at [     
   ] being the usual or last known residence of that person and/or  

 
 

ALTERNATIVE 3 addressing the notice to the Secretary of Clerk of [  
 Limited] at [    ] being the registered or principal office of [ 

Agenda Item 5

Page 35



Page 5 of 46 

   Limited] and delivering it or sending it in a prepaid letter to that 
address and/or 

 
 

ALTERNATIVE 4 (it not being practicable after reasonable inquiry having been made 
to ascertain the name and address of the person to or on whom the notice should be 
given or served) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming 
the Premises) and either delivering it to some person on the Premises or (there being 
no person on the Premises to whom it can be delivered) affixing the notice or a copy of 
it to some conspicuous part of the Premises. 

 
 

ALTERANTIVE 5 (the premises at the date such notice is given or served being 
unoccupied) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming the 
premises) and affixing the notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the 
premises stating that the Council intended to remedy the defective state of the 
Premises after the expiration of [ ] days from the date of service of the notice by 
carrying out the following works:[     ]. 

  
9. AND WHEREAS there being no counter-notice served upon the Council within the 

period prescribed by S.76 (3) of the Act, the Council executed the said works 
between the [date] and the [date] at a cost of the Council of £ 

 
 
10. AND WHEREAS on the [date] the Council registered the cost of the works in Part II 

of the Sefton Borough Local Land Charges Register as a specific financial charge 
against the Premises such charge attracting interest at such a rate from time to time 
applying. 

 
11. AND WHEREAS pursuant to a notice dated [   ] the Council gave 

notice to the owner or owners of the property known as [    
  ] (‘the premises’) under Section 76 of the Act by serving the notice in 
accordance with Section 94 of the Act by 

 
 

ALTERNATIVE 1 Addressing the notice to [     ] and delivering 
it to that person and/or 
 
ALTERNATIVE 2 addressing the notice to [     ] and leaving it 
or sending it in a prepaid letter addressed to that person at [    
    ] being the usual or last known residence of that person and/or 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE 3 addressing the notice to the Secretary of Clerk of [   
  Limited] at [      ] being the registered or 
principal office of [      Limited] and delivering it or 
sending it in a prepaid letter to that address and/or 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE 4 (it not being practicable after reasonable inquiry having been made 
to ascertain the name and address of the person to or on whom the notice should be 
given or served) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming 
the Premises) and either delivering it to some person on the Premises or (there being 
no person on the Premises to whom it can be delivered) affixing the notice or a copy of 
it to some conspicuous part of the premises. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 36



Page 6 of 46 

ALTERNATIVE 5 (the premises at the date such notice is given or served being 
unoccupied) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming the 
Premises) and affixing the notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the 
Premises stating that the Council intended  to remedy the defective state of the 
Premises  after the expiration of [9] days from the date of service of the notice by 
carrying out the following works: 

 
 

12. AND WHEREAS there being no counter-notice served upon the Council within the 
period prescribed by S.76(3) of the Act, the Council executed the said  works 
between the [date] and the [date] at a cost to the Council of [£  ]. 

 
13. AND WHEREAS on the [date] the Council registered the cost of the works in Part II 

of Sefton Borough Local Land Charges Register as a specific financial charge 
against the Premises such charge attracting interest at such a rate from time to time 
applying. 

 
14. AND WHEREAS the said monies continue to remain outstanding. 

 
THE COUNCIL SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL being now desirous of 
exercising their aforementioned  power of sale over the premises to recover the costs they 
have incurred in relation thereto, 
 
1. HEREBY RESOLVES 
 
1 (i) to make application to the District Land Registry for Lancashire and Merseyside 

under the Land Registration Act 1925 to register their charge against all titles 
subsisting in the Premises. 

 
1 (ii) to claim affirm and avow in said application the binding nature of the Council’s 

charge on all estates and interests in the Premises and the priority of the Council’s 
charge over all existing and future charges affecting each and every title in the 
Premises (whether or not they be registered) such claims affirmations and avowals 
being supported by the decisions in Bristol Corporation –v- Virgin [1928] 2.K.B.622 
and Paddington Borough Council –v- Finucane [1928] Ch567. 

 
1. (iii) to affix the Council seal hereto. 
 
2. HEREBY CERTIFIES to HM Land Registry 
 
2 (i) as recited in paragraph 4 of this resolution the Act contains provisions  conferring a 

charge on the Premises and on all estates and interests therein. 
 
2 (ii)  as further recited in paragraph 4 of this resolution the Act confers on the Council all 

the powers and remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925 and otherwise as if it 
is a mortgage by deed. 

 
2 (iii)    the Council has followed the procedure in the Act as to service of notices and the 

carrying out of the works. 
 
2 (iv)  the charge(s) for which an application for registration is made pursuant to 1 (i) 

above affects (s) the whole of the property known as {     } 
and registered under title number(s) [  ] 

 
2 (v) as recited in paragraph(s) 10 and 13 of this resolution the charge (s) for which an 

application for registration is made pursuant to 1 (i) hereof was/were registered in 

Agenda Item 5

Page 37



Page 7 of 46 

Part 2 of the City of Manchester Register of Local Land Charges on the [  
 ] and the [   ] 

 
  
 DATED this day of 20 
 
 
THE COMMON SEAL OF SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL was 
hereunto affixed in pursuance of an Order of the Council of the said borough 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 38



Page 8 of 46 

 
 Neighbouhoods and 

Investment Programmes 
Department 

 Magdalen House 
 30 Trinity Road 
 Bootle 
 Merseyside L20 3NJ 
  
 Date:  
 Our Ref:  
 Your Ref:  
  
 Please contact:  
 Contact Number: 0151 934 4712 
 Fax No: 0151 394 4276 
 e-mail:  
 
Dear, 
 
Re:  
Address:  
 
The Council has, pursuant to its statutory powers, carried out certain works to the 
above premises, the cost of which have been registered in Part 2 of the Register of 
Local Land Charges as financial charges.  Notice(s) detailing the works and the 
costs have been served, together with Notices(s) of demand for payment of the 
amount(s) due to the Council in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 103(1) 
of the Law of Property Act 1925. 
 
The Statutes pursuant to which the Council has carried out such works confer, in 
favour of the Council, a charge on the premises and all estates and interests therein 
and the Council has, for the purposes of enforcing the charge all the same powers 
and remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925, and otherwise as if it were a 
mortgagee by deed having powers of sale, of lease, of accepting surrenders of 
leases and of appointing a receiver. 
 
The Council proposes, pursuant to its statutory powers, to register the said 
financial charges against the title to the above premises.  Once the charge(s) have 
been registered, the Council may then sell the premises and apply the proceeds of 
sale towards the discharge of the debt.  If, however, the debt is greater than the 
proceeds of sale received on any sale, the Council has the right to pursue you for 
any balance owing, if necessary by legal action. 
 
I should therefore be grateful if you would make arrangements through me for the 
discharge of the outstanding debt or, if you are not prepared to do this, then please 
forward to me all the title deeds in you possession relating to the above property.  If 
they are not in your possession, please let me know and advise me of the 
whereabouts of the deeds. 
 

 
 

Minicom: 0151 934 4657 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Appendix 6 Agenda Item 5

Page 39



Page 9 of 46 

 
 
 
Please note, if I hear nothing from you within 21 days from the date hereof, I will 
proceed to register the Council’s charges against your title to the above premises. 
 
If you wish to discuss this matter, pleases do not hesitate to contact me on the 
above details. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 40



 
 

Minicom: 0151 934 4657 

 
 
 
 
 

Bill Milburn,  
Environmental Protection Director 

The Environmental Protection Department is part of the Regeneration 
Directorate 

 
 

 

 

 Neighbourhoods and 
Investment Programmes 
Department 

 Magdalen House 
 30 Trinity Road 
 Bootle 
 Merseyside L20 3NJ 
  
 Date:  
 Our Ref:  
 Your Ref:  
  
 Please contact:  
 Contact Number: 0151 934 4712 
 Fax No: 0151 394 4276 
 e-mail:  
 
Dear, 
 
Address:  
Your Charge Dated:  
 
I am aware from the contents of the registers of title number [  [, which relates to the 
above property, that you have a charge registered against the same.  That charge is 
dated [  ] and the owner of the property is shown to be [  ]. 
 
The Council has, pursuant to its statutory powers, carried out certain works to the 
above property , the costs of which have been registered in Part 2 of the Register of 
Local Land Charges as financial charges. 
 
The Statutes pursuant to which the Council has carried out such works confer, in 
favour of the Council, a charge on the premises and all estates and interests therein 
and the Council has, for the purposes of enforcing the charge all the same powers 
and remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925, and otherwise as if it were a 
mortgagee by deed having powers of sale, of lease, of accepting surrenders of 
leases and of appointing a receiver.  The said statutes confer a priority on the 
Council’s charge over your own charge and. Therefore, when registered, the 
Council will be the first chargee. 
 
The Council proposes, pursuant to its statutory powers, to register the financial 
charges against the title to the above premises.  Thereafter the Council may 
exercise its power of sale over the property and apply the proceeds of sale towards 
the discharge of the debt due to the Council. 
 
If you wish to repay the outstanding debt due to the Council, I will provide details of 
the outstanding amounts.  Otherwise, I should be grateful if you would forward to 
me all the title deeds and documents in your possession relating to the property.   
 
If you do not have the deeds and documents in you possession, please let me 
know.  I should be grateful if you were then able to let me know their whereabouts. 

Appendix 7 

Agenda Item 5

Page 41



Page 2 of 46 

 
 
If you wish to discuss this matter, pleases do not hesitate to contact me on the 
above details. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 

 
 
 
    
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 42



Page 3 of 46 

Example of resolution – Section 76, Building Act 1984 
 

PROPERTY:       BUILDING ACT 1984 
 
SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
1. Whereas Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council (‘the Council’) is a ‘local authority’ 

within the meaning of Section 126 of the Building Act 1984 (‘the Act’). 
 
2. And whereas a local authority, if it considers that any premises are in such a state 

as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance, and unreasonable delay in remedying 
that defective state would be occasioned by following the procedure prescribed by 
Section 80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 may, under Section 76 of the 
Act, serve Notice on the owner or occupier of those premises stating that the local 
authority intend to remedy the defective state and may do so, subject to there being 
no counter-notice served by the owner or occupier. 

 
3. And whereas a notice under Section 76 of the Act is to be served in accordance 

with Section 94 of the Act. 
 
4. And whereas the expense of such works may, by virtue of Subsection (2) of Section 

76 of the Act, be recovered from the owner or occupier of the premises and such 
expense plus interest thereon, by virtue of Section 107 of the Act, from the date of 
completion of the works shall, until recovered, be a charge upon the premises and 
all estates and interests in them and gives a local authority for the purposes of 
enforcing such a charge, all the powers and remedies under the Law of Property 
Act 1925 and otherwise as if they were mortgagees by deed. 

 
5. And whereas such charge is by virtue of Section 1(1)(a) of the Local Land Charges 

Act 1975, registerable as a Local Land Charge. 
 
6. And whereas, under Section 7 of the Local Land Charges Act 1975, a local land 

charge falling within the aforementioned Section 1(1)(a) takes affect as if it had 
been created by deed of charge, by way of legal mortgage within the meaning of 
the Law of Property Act 1925, but without prejudice to the priority of the charge. 

 
7. And whereas Section 101 of the Law of Property Act 1925 provides that a 

mortgagee by deed shall have inter alia the power of sale of the property so 
mortgaged. 

 
8. And whereas pursuant to a notice dated [  ] the Council gave Notice to the owner or 

owners of the property known as [   ] (‘the premises’) under Section 76 of the Act by 
serving the Notice in accordance with Section 94 of the Act by  - 

 
ALTERNATIVE 1 addressing the Notice to [   ] and delivering it to that person 
and/or 

 
ALTERNATIVE 2 addressing the Notice to [   ] and leaving it or sending it in a pre-
paid letter addressed to that person at [        ] being the usual or last known 
residence of that person and/or 

 

Appendix 8 Agenda Item 5

Page 43



Page 4 of 46 

ALTERNATIVE 3 addressing the Notice to the Secretary or Clerk of [          Limited] 
at [         ], being the registered or principal office of [      Limited] and delivering it or 
sending it in a pre-paid letter to that address and/or 

 
ALTERNATIVE 4 (it not being practicable, after reasonable inquiry having been 
made, to ascertain the name and address of the person to or on whom the Notice 
should be given or served) addressing the Notice to the owner or owners of the 
premises (naming the premises) and either delivering it to some person on the 
premises or (there being no person on the premises to whom it can be delivered) 
affixing the Notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the premises. 

 
ALTERNATIVE 5 (the premises at the date such Notice is given or served being 
unoccupied) addressing the Notice to the owner or owners of the premises (naming 
the premises) and affixing the Notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the 
premises stating that the Council intended to remedy the defective state of the 
premises after the expiration of [   ] days from the date of service of the Notice by 
carrying out the following works: [              ]. 

 
9. And whereas there being no counter-notice served upon the Council within the 

period prescribed by Section 76(3)  of the Act, the Council executed the said works 
between the [date] and the [date] at a cost to the Council of £[   ]. 

 
10. And whereas on the [date] the Council registered the cost of the works in Part 11 of 

Sefton Council’s Local Land Charges Register as a specific financial charge against 
the premises, such charge attracting interest at such a rate from time to time 
applying. 

 
11. And whereas pursuant to a Notice dated [   ] the Council gave Notice to the owner 

or owners of the property known as [     ] (‘the premises’) under Section 76 of the 
Act by serving the Notice in accordance with Section 94 of the Act by 

 
ALTERNATIVE 1 Addressing the Notice to [      ] and delivering it to that person 
and/or 

 
ALTERNATIVE 2 Addressing the Notice to [    ] and leaving it or sending it in a pre-
paid letter addressed to that person at [    ] being the usual or last known residence 
of that person and/or 

 
ALTERNATIVE 3 addressing the Notice to the Secretary or Clerk of [          Limited] 
at [         ], being the registered or principal office of [      Limited] and delivering it or 
sending it in a pre-paid letter to that address and/or 

 
ALTERNATIVE 4 (it not being practicable, after reasonable inquiry having been 
made, to ascertain the name and address of the person to or on whom the Notice 
should be given or served) addressing the Notice to the owner or owners of the 
premises (naming the premises) and either delivering it to some person on the 
premises or (there being no person on the premises to whom it can be delivered) 
affixing the Notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the premises. 

 
ALTERNATIVE 5 (the premises at the date such Notice is given or served being 
unoccupied) addressing the Notice to the owner or owners of the premises (naming 
the premises) and affixing the Notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the 

Agenda Item 5

Page 44



Page 5 of 46 

premises stating that the Council intended to remedy the defective state of the 
premises after the expiration of [   ] days from the date of service of the Notice by 
carrying out the following works: [              ]. 

 
12. And whereas there being no counter-notice served upon the Council within the 

period prescribed by Section 76(3) of the Act, the Council executed the said works 
between the [date] and the [date] at a cost to the Council of £. 

 
13. And whereas on the [date] the Council registered the cost of the works in Part 11 of 

Sefton  Council’s Local Land Charges Register as a specific financial charge 
against the premises, such charge attracting interest at such a rate from time to 
time applying. 

 
14. And whereas the said monies continue to remain outstanding. 
 
METROPOLITAN BOROUGH OF SEFTON being now desirous of exercising their 
aforementioned power of sale over the premises to recover the costs they have incurred in 
relation thereto, 
 
HEREBY RESOLVES 
 

1(i) To make application to the District Land Registry for Lancashire and Greater 
Manchester under the Land Registration Act 1925 to register their charge against all 
titles subsisting in the premises 

1(ii) To claim, affirm and avow in said application the binding nature of the Council’s 
charge on all estates and interests in the premises and the priority of the Council’s 
charge over all existing and future charges affecting each and every title in the 
premises (whether or not they be registered), such claims, affirmations and avowels 
being supported by the decisions in Bristol Corporation-v-Virgin [1928] 2.K.B.622 
and Paddington Borough Council-v-Finucane [1928] Ch567. 

1(iii) To affix the Council seal hereto. 

HEREBY CERTIFIES TO HM LAND REGISTRY 

2(i) As recited in paragraph 4 of this resolution, the Act contains provisions conferring a 
charge on the premises and on all estates and interests therein. 

2(ii) As further recited in paragraph 4 of this resolution, the Act confers on the Council all 
the powers and remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925 and otherwise as if it 
is a mortgage by deed. 

2(iii) The Council has followed the procedure in the Act as to service of Notices and the 
carrying out of the works. 

2(iv) The charge(s) for which an application for registration is made pursuant to 1(i) 
above affect(s) the whole of the property known as [             ] and registered under 
title number(s) [     ]. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 45



Page 6 of 46 

2(v) As recited in paragraphs 10 and 13 of this resolution, the charge(s) for which an 
application for registration is made pursuant to 1(i) hereof was/were registered in 
Part 2 of the Sefton Council Register of Local Land Charges on the [   ] and the [   ] 

 

Dated :  

 
The COMMON SEAL of the  
Metropolitan Borough of Sefton  
was hereunto affixed in 
pursuance of an Order of  
the Council of the said Borough 
 
 
Authorised Signatory: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 46



 

*********OBTAIN FROM LAND REGISTRY******* 

Sample Application for Registration 
(Form AP1) 

*********OBTAIN FROM LAND REGISTRY******* 
AP1 

Application to    HM Land Registry 
change the register 
 
If you need more room than is provided for in a panel, use continuation sheet CS and staple to this form. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. Administrative area(s) and postcode (if known) INSERT RELEVANT DETAILS 

 
 
2. Title Number(s) INSERT ALL TITLE NUMBERS RELEVANT 
 

Deposit No. (if any) 

 
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
Record of fees paid 
 
 

 
3. Application, Priority and Fees in priority order 
    Nature of applications 
                                                            Value £ 
                                                            Not exceeding £100,000 
    1. Registration of charge                 Fees paid 
            2.                                                               £40 
            3. 
            4. 
            5. 
            6. 
                                                                              TOTAL £40 
            Accompanying cheques or postal orders should be made payable to ‘HM Land Registry’     
 

 
Particulars of under/over payments 

 
4. Documents lodged with this form 
    1. Sealed Resolution(s)       2. Cert. Copy Sealed Resolution(s)       3. 
    4.                                          5.                                                           6. 
    7.                                          8.                                                           9. 
   10.                                        11.                                                         12. 
   13.                                        14.                                                         15. 
 

 
5. Application lodged by 
 
    Land Registry Key No. COMPLETE REMAINDER OF FORM AS APPROPRIATE 
 

    Name 
 
    Address/DX No 
 
    Referee 
 

 
    Telephone No.                                                  Fax No. 
 

 
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
 

Codes 
 
Dealing 
 
Status 

 
6. Where the Registry is to deal with someone else 
 
     The Registry will send any land/charge certificate to the person named in panel 5 above and will, if necessary, contact that 
       Person. You can change this by placing ‘X’ against one or more of the statements and completing the details below. 
 

        Please send any land/charge certificate to the person shown below 

        Please raise any requisitions or queries with the person shown below 

        Please issue to the person shown below the following documents 

 
       If you have placed ‘X’ against any statements above, complete the following name and address details        
 
       Name: Address/DX No. 
 

 
Reference                                                        Telephone No. 
 

Appendix 9 Agenda Item 5

Page 47



Page 2 of 46 

 
 

*********OBTAIN FROM LAND REGISTRY******* 
Sample Application for Registration 

(Form SC) 
*********OBTAIN FROM LAND REGISTRY******* 

 
Application for noting the                                                                                Land Registry  
overriding priority of a  
statutory charge 
 
If this application is accompanied by either Form AP1 or FR!, you need not complete panels 6, 7 or 8. 
If you need more room than is provided for in a panel, use continuation sheet CS and attach to this form 
 

 
1. Administrative area and postcode if known 

 

 
2. Title number(s) 

 

 
3. If you already made this application by outline application, 

    insert reference number: 
 

 
4. Property 

 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
 
Record of fee Paid 

Particulars of under/over payment 

 
5. Application and fee A fee calculator for all types of applications can be 
    found on Land Registry’s website at www.landregistry.gov.uk/fees 
 
     Noting of priority                                   Fee paid £ 
    of statutory charge 
 
    Fee payment method: Place ‘X’ in the appropriate box. 

     I wish to pay the appropriate fee payable under the current Land 
     Registration Fee Order: 
 

     By cheque or postal order, amount £                   made 

         payable to ‘Land Registry’ 

     By Direct Debit under an authorised agreement with Land  

         Registry 
 

Fees debited £ 
 
 
 
 
Reference number 

 
6. Documents lodged with this form Number the documents in sequence: copies should also be numbered and listed as separate 
      documents; alternatively you may prefer to use Form DL. If you supply the original documentation and a certified copy, we will assume that 
      you request the return of the original, if a certified copy is not supplied, we may return the original document and it may be destroyed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
7. The applicant is: Please provide the full name of the person applying for the noting of the overriding  
      priority 
 

    The application has been lodged by: 

     Land Registry Key No. (if appropriate) 
     Name (if different from the applicant) 
     Address/DX No. 
 
 
     Reference 
     E-mail 

     Telephone no. 
       

Fax no. 
 

 
FOR 

OFFICIAL 
USE ONLY 
Codes 
Dealing 

 
 

Status 

S C 

 

Appendix 10 
Agenda Item 5

Page 48



Page 3 of 46 

 

 
Sample Application for Registration 

(Form SC) continued 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8. Where the registry is to deal with someone else We shall deal only with the applicant, or the person lodging the 
      application if different unless you place ‘X’ against one or more of the statements below and give the necessary details. 
 
 

         Send title information document to the person shown below 
 
         Raise any requisitions or queries with the person shown below 
 
         Return original documents lodged with this form (see note in panel 6) to the person shown below 
         If this applies only to certain documents, please specify 
 
 
 

         Name 
         Address/DX No. 
 
         Reference 
         E-mail 

         Telephone No.                                                  Fax No.                        

 
9. Place ’X’ in the appropriate box and complete as necessary 
 

       I certify that the statutory charge is already registered as entry number        in the charges register 

 

     I certify that the statutory charge has arisen and this is evidenced by: 

 
          A resolution dated [                                  ] made by the Applicant enclosed with the accompanying 
          application  for registration of the charge 
 
 

 
10. The applicant applies for an entry to be made on the register to show that the statutory 
       charge referred to in panel 9 above has priority over the charge(s) shown in panel 11 below. 
       The statutory charge has priority by virtue of: Please state the provision, etc. 
 

       The statements contained in a resolution dated [                                  ] made by the Applicant  
        enclosed with the accompanying application for registration of the charge 
 

 
11. Please identify the charge(s) over which priority is claimed: If there are two or more charges of the same date to the 
         same lender, you must clearly identify which charge(s) priority is claimed over by including a number or other identifier for the charge in 
         the first column 

                 Date of Charge                                                                Lender 
 
 
 
 

 
12. Signature of applicant 
      or their conveyancer                                                                  Date 
                                                                                                                   
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 49



Page 4 of 46 

 
Appendix 11 

Letter to Land Registry in respect of unregistered property 
 

 
Your ref: 
 
Our ref: 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
The Chief Land Registrar, 
Merseyside District Land Registry, 
Birkenhead 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Property: 
 
I refer to the above property, which has today been transferred by the Council under the 
Enforced Sales Procedure. 
 
In accordance with the procedure agreed with you I, on behalf of the Council and being duly 
authorised to DO so, hereby certify that: 
 
1. as recited in clause [  ] of the Contract for Sale dated [          ] the 

Act (as referred to therein) contains provision conferring a charge on the Premises 
and on all estates and interests therein. 

 
2. as further recited in clause [  ] of the said Contract for Sale the Act 

confers on the Council all the powers and remedies under the Law of Property Act 
1925 and otherwise as if they were mortgagee by deed. 

 
3.  the Council has followed the procedure in the Act as to service of notices and the     

carrying out of the works. 
 
4. the charge(s) pursuant to which the Council has disposed of the property affect(s) 

the whole of the property known as [              ] today disposed of by 
the Council. 

 
5. as recited in clause [   ] of the Contract for Sale the charge(s) 

pursuant to which the Council has disposed of the property was/were registered in 
part 2 of the Register of Local Land Charges on the [    ]. 

 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Borough Solicitor. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 50



Page 5 of 46 

 
 
 

 Neighbourhoods and 
Investment Programmes 
Department 

 Magdalen House 
 30 Trinity Road 
 Bootle 
 Merseyside L20 3NJ 
  
 Date:  
 Our Ref:  
 Your Ref:  
  
 Please contact:  
 Contact Number: 0151 934 4712 
 Fax No: 0151 394 4276 
 e-mail:  
 
Dear, 
 
Re:  
Address:  
 
I refer to the above and my letter dated , requesting the Title Deeds and advising you of 
the Council’s statutory powers in relation to the charges outstanding in respect of the 
above property. 
 
In that letter, I advised you that the Council has the power to sell the above property, for 
the purpose of enforcing the charge and to deduct from the proceeds of sale the debts due 
to the Council. 
 
The Council’s charge has now been registered at HM Land Registry and it is now the 
Council’s intention to market the property with a view to a sale thereof. 
 
 
    
Yours faithfully,  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Minicom: 0151 934 4657 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Appendix 12 

Agenda Item 5

Page 51



 

 

Suggested Special Conditions 
 

Building Act 1984 (Section 76) Charge – Unregistered Property 

 
Suggested Special Conditions 
 
1. The Property 
All that Property situate at and known as [       ] in the Metropolitan Borough of Sefton 
shown for identification purposes only edged on the attached plan. 
 
2. Recitals 
2.1 WHEREAS the Vendor is a ‘local authority’ within the meaning of S.126 of the Building 
Act 1984 (‘the Act’) and the steps taken by the Vendor as referred to in these recitals were 
taken in their capacity as a local authority within the meaning of the Act 
 
2.2 AND WHEREAS a local authority, if it considers that any premises are in such a state 
as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance, and unreasonable delay in remedying that 
defective state would be occasioned by following the procedure prescribed by S.80 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1980, may under S.76 of the Act, serve notice on the owner 
or occupier of those premises stating that the local authority intend to remedy the defective 
state and may do so, subject to there being no counter-notice served by the owner or 
occupier. 
 
2.3 AND WHEREAS a notice under Section 76 of the Act is to be served in accordance 
with Section 94 of the Act. 
 
2.4 AND WHEREAS the expense of such works may, by virtue of Subsection (2) of S.76 
of the Act, be recovered from the owner or occupier of the premises and such expense 
plus interest thereon, by virtue of S.107 of the Act, from the date of completion of the 
works shall, until recovered, be a charge upon the premises and all estates in them and 
gives a local authority, for the purpose of enforcing such a charge, all the powers and 
remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925 and otherwise as if they were mortgagees 
by deed. 
 
2.5 AND WHEREAS such charge is, by virtue of S.1(1) (a) of the Local Land Charges Act 
1975, registerable as a local land charge. 
 
2.6 AND WHEREAS under S.7 of the Local Land Charges Act 1975 a local land charge 
falling within the aforementioned S.1 (1) (a) takes effect as if it had been created by deed 
of charge by way of legal mortgage within the meaning of the Law of Property Act 1925, 
but without prejudice to the priority of the charge. 
 
2.7 AND WHEREAS S.101 of the Law of Property Act 1925 provides that a mortgagee by 
deed shall have inter alia the power of sale of the property so mortgaged. 
 
2.8 AND WHEREAS pursuant to a notice dated [       ] the Vendor gave notice to the 
owner or owners of the Property (in these recitals described as ‘the Premises’) under 
Section 76 of the Act by serving the notice in accordance with Section 94 of the Act by 
 
ALTERNATIVE 1 Addressing the notice to [       ] and delivering it to that person and/or 
 
ALTERNATIVE 2 Addressing the notice to [       ] and leaving it or sending it in a prepaid 
letter addressed to that person at [       ] being the usual or last known residence of that 
person and/or 
 

Appendix 13 Agenda Item 5

Page 52



Page 2 of 46 

ALTERNATIVE 3 Addressing the notice to the Secretary or Clerk of [        Limited] at [       ] 
being the registered or principal office of [        Limited] and delivering it or sending it in a 
prepaid letter to that address and/or 
 
ALTERNATIVE 4 (It not being practicable after reasonable inquiry having been made to 
ascertain the name and address of the person to or on whom the notice should be given or 
served) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming the 
Premises) and either delivering it to some person on the Premises or (there being no 
person on the Premises to whom it can be delivered) affixing the notice or a copy of it to 
some conspicuous part of the Premises. 
 
ALTERNATIVE 5 (the Premises at the date such notice is given or served being 
unoccupied) addressing the notice to the owner or owners of the Premises (naming the 
Premises) and affixing the notice or a copy of it to some conspicuous part of the Premises 
stating that the Vendor intended to remedy the defective state of the Premises after the 
expiration of [9] days from the date of service of the notice by carrying out the following 
works: 
 
2.9 AND WHEREAS there being no counter-notice served upon the Vendor within the 
period prescribed by S.76(3) of the Act, the Vendor executed the said works between the [       
] and the [       ] at a cost to the Vendor of [£       ]. 
 
2.10 AND WHEREAS on the [date] the Vendor registered the cost of the works in Part 11 
of the Salford City Council Local Land Charges Register as a specific financial charge 
against the Premises, such charge attracting interest at such a rate from time to time 
applying. 
 
2.11 AND WHEREAS the expenses incurred by the Vendor as referred to in Recital 2.9 
have become a charge on the premises by virtue of Section 107 of the Act as more 
particularly referred to in Recital 2.4 and the said expenses continue to remain 
outstanding. 
 
3 Title 

3.1 The title to the property is unregistered and the Vendor does not have in its 
possession any of the title deeds or documents relating to the Property and the 
Purchaser shall raise no requisition thereon or objections thereto and shall not be 
entitled to postpone or delay completion as a result thereof. 

 
3.2 The Vendor cannot produce an up-to-date receipt in respect of any yearly rent (if 

any) payable on the Property nor any other evidence that any such rent has been 
paid to date (and in which respect the Vendor shall not be liable for any arrears of 
such rent up to the date of Actual Completion and which liability the Purchaser will 
assume on Actual Completion) and the Purchaser shall raise no requisition nor be 
entitled to delay or postpone completion as a result thereof. 

 
3.3 The Purchaser purchases with full knowledge of the fact that on first registration of 

the title to the Property at HM Land Registry the Chief Land Registrar will make an 
entry against such title on the following (or similar terms) and the Purchaser shall 
make no claim or demand against the Vendor in regard thereto: 

 
 “The Property is subject to such restrictive covenants and to such rent charges as 

may have been imposed thereon before [this will be the date of application for first 
registration] and are still subsisting and capable of taking effect”. 

 
4 Possession 

 Vacant possession of the Property will be given to the Purchaser on Actual 
Completion. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 53



Page 3 of 46 

 
5 Covenants for Title 

5.1 The Vendor is selling all of the estates and interests in the Property as are bound 
by the Charge(s) arising under Section 107 of the Building Act 1984 as referred to 
Recital 2.11 of these Special Conditions but freed and discharged from the said 
Charge(s). 

 
5.2 Sections 1 to 9 of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall not 

apply to this Agreement and the Transfer of the Property to the Purchaser (‘the 
Transfer’) and the Transfer shall contain the following provisions: 
5.2.1 In consideration of £[naming the amount of the consideration] (receipt of 

which is acknowledged) the Vendor transfers the Property to the Purchaser 
5.2.2 The parties agree and declare that the covenants by the Vendor implied by 

Sections 1 to 9 of the Law of Property  (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 
shall not apply to this transfer. 

 
6 Matters affecting the Property 

The property is sold subject to and (as the case may be) with the benefit of: 
6.1 all rents rights exceptions and reservations and covenants and conditions 

provisions and agreements and declarations or otherwise as subsist and relate to 
the Property without any obligation or liability on the part of the Vendor (whether as 
a result of its inability to produce the title deeds or documents to the property or 
otherwise) to define or provide details of the same. 

 
6.2 all Local Land Charges whether registered or not before or after the date hereof 

and all matters capable of being registered as such 
 
6.3 all notices served and orders demands proposals or requirements made by any 

local or public authority whether before or after the date hereof 
 
6.4 all actual or proposed orders directions notices charges restrictions conditions 

agreements or other matters arising under the town and country planning legislation 
and environmental law. 

 
6.5 all covenants exceptions and reservations of whatever nature all rights of way water 

light air and other rights easements quasi easements liabilities and public or private 
rights whatever and to any liability to repair or contribute to the repair of sewers 
drains fences or other like matters as the Purchaser shall have notice of or shall be 
apparent on inspection of the Property. 

 
7 Indemnity covenant by the Purchaser 

The transfer will contain a covenant by the Purchaser with the Vendor that the Purchaser 
and its successors in title will henceforth observe and perform all such matters subject to 
which the property is expressed to be sold in Clause 6.1 of these Special Conditions the 
breach of which would or could expose the Vendor to liability (either direct or indirect) and 
will contain an indemnity by the Purchaser in favour of the Vendor against all actions 
proceedings costs claims and demands which may be made against the Vendor in 
connection with the breach non-performance or non-observance of the same. 
 
8 Subsales 

The Vendor will not be required to execute a Transfer of the property to any person other 
than the Purchaser and in one parcel and by one transfer. 
 
9 General Conditions 

9.1 ‘The General Conditions’ means the Standard Conditions of Sale (Fourth Edition) 
 
9.2 The General Conditions are deemed to be incorporated herein so far as the same are applicable to a 

sale by private treaty and are not varied by or inconsistent with these Special Conditions and the 

Agenda Item 5

Page 54



Page 4 of 46 

‘contract rate’ will be four per cent (4%) per annum above the Base Rate for the time being of the 
Co-operative Bank plc. 

 
9.3 The General Conditions are amended as follows: 

9.3.1 Standard Conditions 2.2.5 and 2.2.6 shall not apply and the Deposit shall be 
paid to the Vendor’s Solicitor as agent for the Vendor. 

9.3.2 In Standard Condition 3.1.2 subclause (c) the words “and could not 
reasonably” shall be deleted 

9.3.3 Standard Condition 3.4 shall not apply 
9.3.4 Standard Condition 4.6.2 shall not apply 
9.3.5 Standard Condition 5.1.1 shall not apply and the buyer assumes the risk 

when the contract is made 
9.3.6 Standard Condition 5.1.2 shall not apply and the buyer must buy the 

Property in whatever physical state it is in at completion. 
 

9.3.7 Standard Conditions 5.2.2 (b), 5.2.2 (e) and 5.2.2 (g) shall not apply 
9.3.8 Standard Condition 5.2.3 shall not apply 
9.3.9 Standard Condition 5.2.7 shall not apply 
9.3.10 In Standard Condition 5.2.2 (f) the words “nor change its use and is to 

comply with all statutory obligations relating to the property and indemnify 
the seller against all liability arising as a result of any breach of such 
obligation” shall be added at the end 

9.3.11  In Standard Condition 7.1.1 the words “or in negotiation leading to it” 
and “or was” shall be deleted 

9.3.12 Standard Condition 7.3.2 shall be deleted and the following substituted: 
 Compensation is calculated at the contract rate on all sums payable under 

the contract (other than pursuant to Standard Condition 6.3) for the period 
between the completion date and actual completion. 

 
10 Non-merger 
The contract will not merge in the Transfer on completion but will continue in full force and effect in relation 
to any matters outstanding at completion. 

 
11 Condition of the Property 

The Purchaser is deemed to have made a full and complete inspection of the Property and 
to have full knowledge and notice of the state of repair and condition thereof in all respects 
and the Purchaser shall make no claim or demand whatsoever against the Vendor in 
respect of any matter or thing arising out of or in connection with the state of repair and 
condition of the Property or any part thereof. 

 
12 Transfer to take effect subject to General and Special Conditions 
The transfer is to take effect as if the disposition is expressly made subject to all matters to which the 
Property is sold subject under the General Conditions and Special Conditions of sale. 

 
13 Completion Date 

The sale will be completed at the office of the Vendor’s Solicitor before 2.30pm on [   ] 
 

14 Restriction on Assignment 

This Agreement is personal to the Purchaser and shall not be capable of assignment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 55



Page 5 of 46 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Environmental Protection 

Department 
 Magdalen House 
 30 Trinity Road 
 Bootle 
 Merseyside L20 3NJ 
  
 Date:  
 Our Ref:  
 Your Ref:  
  
 Please contact:  
 Contact Number: 0151 934 4712 
 Fax No: 0151 394 4276 
 e-mail:  
 
Dear, 
 
Re:  
Address:  
 
I refer to the above property, which has today been transferred by the Council under the 
Enforced Sales Procedure. 
 
In accordance with the procedure agreed with you, I on behalf of the Council and being 
duly authorised to do so, hereby certify that: 
 
1. as recited in clause [       ] of the Contract for Sale dated [       ] the Act (as referred 

to therein) contains provision conferring a charge on the Premises and on all 
estates and interests therein. 

 
2. as further recited in clause [       ] of the said Contract for Sale the Act confers on 

the Council all the powers and remedies under the Law of Property Act 1925 and 
otherwise as if they were mortgagee by deed. 

 
3. the Council has followed the procedure in the Act as to service of notices and the 

carrying out of the works. 
 
4. the charge(s) pursuant to which the Council has disposed of the property affect(s) 

the whole of the property known as [       ] today disposed of by the Council. 
 
5. as recited in clause [       ] of the Contract for Sale the charge(s) pursuant to which 

the Council has disposed of the property was/were registered in part 2 of the 
Register of Local Land Charges on the [       ] 

Appendix 14 

Agenda Item 5

Page 56



Page 6 of 46 

 
Yours faithfully,  
 
 
 

 
 

Minicom: 0151 934 4657 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 57



ITEM NO.  
 
 
 

SEFTON COUNCIL EXECUTIVE REPORT report-master                   Page No.   

  

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 58



 
 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet Member Regeneration 
Cabinet 
 

DATE: 
 

14
th
 April 2010 

15
th
 April 2010 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

Former Peoples Showroom – Replacement for St John and 
St James Church, Klondyke. 
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

Derby 
 

REPORT OF: 
 

Alan Lunt, Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes 
Director 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Lee Payne, HMR Programme Co-ordinator  
0151 934 4842 
Allan Jones, Project Manager, 0151 934 4229 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No. 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
To seek authority to dispose of part of the former Peoples Showroom site to the Liverpool Diocesan 
Board of Finance, to develop a new place of worship and community facility. 
 
To seek authority to use Housing Market Renewal funding to make a grant to the Liverpool 
Diocesan Board of Finance towards the community and landscape elements of the building. 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
Cabinet has delegated authority with regard to this matter. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 

1. That Cabinet Member notes the report 
 

2. That Cabinet: 
 

(i) Approves the granting of a two year Development Lease to the Liverpool Diocesan 
Board of Finance (referred to in this report as ‘the Church’) for the former Peoples 
Showroom building, so that the building can be refurbished to use as a place of 
worship and community facility. 

 
(ii) Delegates authority to the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director to 

agree the terms for the long-term disposal of the site to the Liverpool Diocesan Board 
of Finance, upon successful completion of the works under the Development Lease. 

 
 
(iii) Approves the contribution of £200,000 from the housing Market Renewal Programme 

2010/11 to the Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance towards the cost of refurbishing 
the building for community use and associated landscaping, subject to a legal 
obligation on the church to provide the agreed level of funding for the project. 

 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

Not appropriate 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Following the expiry of the Call in Period for the minutes of 
this meeting. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



 
 

 

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS:  
 
The present Church has become seriously dilapidated, and repeated investigations have deemed it 
too costly and impractical to repair. The congregation has now moved out and are presently 
worshipping in temporary accommodation. There are no alternative permanent re-location options 
in the area. The intention is for the existing Church to be demolished and re-developed by a private 
developer as part of ongoing Housing Market Renewal activity. 
 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Budget/Policy Framework:   
 
Financial:   The funding required to deliver this project has been 

identified within the Housing Market Renewal 
programme for 2010/11. 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2010/ 
2011 
£ 

2011/ 
2012 
£ 

2012/ 
2013 
£ 

2013/ 
2014 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

None 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

The key risk is that the Church will be unable to secure the 
necessary funding required for the project. However, 
disposal, and making of grants will be conditional on the 
Church providing the agreed level of funding for the project. 

Asset Management: 
 
 
 

This investment will provide a shared community facility to 
replace the one lost by the demolition of the current St John 
and St James Church building. 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
FD363 - and the comment that the Interim Head of Corporate Finance and Information Services 
has been consulted and his comments have been incorporated into the report. 
 
The Legal Services Director has also been consulted in the preparation of this report. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 60



 
 

 

 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community 
a 

  

2 Creating Safe Communities 
a 

  

3 Jobs and Prosperity  
a 

 

4 Improving Health and Well-Being 
a 

  

5 Environmental Sustainability 
a 

  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities 
a 

  

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

 a 
 

8 Children and Young People 
 

a 
  

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 61



 
 

 

1.0     BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The present St John and St James Church building, Kirby Road, Orrell, lies within the 

Klondyke / Hawthorne Road Housing Market Renewal (HMR) intervention area. The Church 
building is seriously dilapidated and has been deemed too costly and impractical to repair. 

 
1.2 The Housing Market Renewal team has been in discussions with the Church for some time to 

find an alternative location. 
 
1.3 The site of the current Church has been earmarked for housing development as part of the 

housing market renewal programme. The current Church is located immediately adjacent to a 
successful development of 12 social rented houses that were developed by Riverside Housing 
Association and occupied in Spring 2007.  

 
1.4 On the 30

th
 September 2009 Cabinet Member Regeneration considered an update report on 

this project and authorised continuing discussions with St John and St James Church pending 
more detailed cost and budget information. Tenders have now been received and project costs 
confirmed. 

 
 
2.0 Project Proposal 
 
Overview 
 
2.1 The former Peoples site is located in Bootle, adjacent to Linacre Lane and Hawthorne Road. 

The site is located in the Klondyke neighbourhood, immediate adjacent to the Klondyke 
Housing Market Renewal Intervention Area. 

 
2.2 The former People’s Showroom building is located in the north east of the site, adjacent to 

Linacre Lane. The Church has appointed architects to develop a refurbishment scheme that 
will utilise the existing building as a place of worship and community facility. A site plan is 
appended to this report at Appendix I. 

 
2.3 Due to the cost of the original design exceeding the likely budget the Church has reviewed the 

scheme and now propose to refurbish the building in phases over time as funds become 
available. 

 
2.4 The first phase, which will provisionally start in the June 2010, will provide a refurbished 

external envelope, ground floor accommodation and first floor structure, albeit with certain 
areas not fitted out, including the kitchen area. The design drawings for Phase 1 of the 
scheme are appended to this report at Appendix II, and the design drawings for Phase 2 of the 
scheme are appended to this report at Appendix III. 

 
2.5 The proposed budget and costs contained in this report will realise Phase 1 of the scheme 

only. It is the Church’s intention to raise funds for Phase 2 of the building, however this 
funding has yet to be secured and the Church are unable to provide details of how they 
propose to raise the funds.  

 
2.6 Planning Consent for the refurbishment scheme was granted on the 16

th
 September 2009 

(S/2009/0555). 
 
Existing Site Proposals 
 
2.7 The Church has agreed to sell their current site to house builder McInerney Homes, with the 

proceeds of the sales being ‘ring fenced’ for use in Phase 1 of the refurbishment of the former 
People’s Showroom building. 

 
2.8 Originally, it was intended that the Council acquire the Church utilising Housing Market 

Renewal resources. Thus the involvement of a developer partner has secured a significant 
saving to the Council. This housing development will be Phase 2 of the successful Kirby Road 

Agenda Item 6

Page 62



 
 

 

scheme with McInerey Homes acting as contractor and agreement having been reached with 
Riverside Housing Association to purchase the units for social rent. 

 
Budget/Costs 
 
2.9 The project costs for the Phase 1 refurbishment of the People’s Showroom are as follows: 
 

Refurbishment (ex VAT) £650,000 

Landscaping/External £50,000 

Fees £55,000 

VAT payable £114,000 

TOTAL £869,000 

 
2.10 The Church has secured the following funding towards the scheme: 
 

Promise Appeal (building fund) £185,000 

Savings by using free temporary 
accommodation 

£15,000 

Sale of existing site to McInerney Homes £270,000 

Sale of Church furnishings £7,000 

TOTAL £477,000 

 
2.11 The Church is confident of finding the following funding towards the scheme (note: funding not 

yet secured): 
 

Money raised from the congregation £50,000 

Maximum loan guaranteed & underwritten 
by Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance 

£100,000 

Grant funding from charities and trusts £30,000 

TOTAL £180,000 

 
 
2.12 Housing Market Renewal has provisionally agreed the following grants toward community 

facilities in the building: 
 

Grant towards the cost of refurbishing the 
building for community use 

£150,000 

Grant towards the cost of external 
landscaping area 

£50,000 

TOTAL £200,000 

 
2.13  Should the Church be successful in assembling the remaining elements of the budget, and    

should approval be given to make the HMR grant towards the scheme costs the total project 
budget would be £857,000. The Church is currently in discussions with their preferred 
contractor to close the budget gap (pt 2.9). 

 
 
Disposal 
 
2.14 Based upon a valuation carried out by Capita Symonds on behalf of the Council the open       

market value for the People Showroom site is £300,000. 
 
2.15 It is proposed that upon the successful completion of the scheme, carried out under a 

Development Lease, the Council will dispose of the site either through a long lease or 
freehold transfer, with the detailed terms to be agreed by the Neighbourhoods and 
Investment Programmes Director. It is not anticipated that this will result in a receipt to the 
Council, effectively discounting the value as above. 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



 
 

 

 
3.0     Community Use of the Proposed Building 
 
3.1    The masterplan for the Klondyke area noted the lack of, and need for, community facilities in    

the area. This proposal is intended to meet that community need. 
 
3.2 The Church has put forward proposals for community access to the building. A copy is     

appended to this report at Appendix IV. 
 
3.3 The Church has confirmed that the list of activities currently accommodated by the church, 

and outlined in this document, would be able to be accommodated in the new building 
following completion of Phase 1 of the project. 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 64



 
 

 

 Appendix I – Site Plan 
 

2

2

2

#

#

#

#

#

2

2

2

2

2

#

96

9
2

TCB

98

8
8

23.5m

Shelter

2
4
7

2

10
0

20

207

2

1

Post

19
1

12

1

W
a
rd
 B
d
y

Windsor Court

2
4

Hall

2
3
9

C
R

2
3
1

22.6m

3
0

2

1

2
1
9

2

2
2
1

23.5m

56

8
0

3

22.6m

8
2

7
8

2

1

2
0

81

203

16

4
0

71

84

48

Odva HallCo
ron

atio
n H

ote
l

8
8
a

(PH
)

86

Sh
elte

rs

1
9

7
5

4
9

3
8

9

Garage

5
1

Vicarage

2
a 21.9m

177

61

18

1
0

Sub Sta

19.8m

12

El

Post

165

159

1

Works

5

14

2

16
7

Post

20.1m

2

17
3

1

2
3

11

25

9

Po
st

22

13

Post

5

0
LIN

AC
RE

 LA
NE

F
E
R
N
H
IL
L
 R
O
A
D

SPENCE
 AVENUE

H
A
N
LO

N
 A
V
E
N
U
E

AIN
SD

AL
E R

OAD

AIN
SD

AL
E R

OAD

S
E
F
TO

N
 R
O
A
D

M
O
N
F
A
 R
O
A
D

LIN
AC

RE
 LA

NE

AU
G
H
TO

N
 R
O
A
D

 

Appendix 1 – Site Plan 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a
g
e
 6

5



 
 

 

                   
                   
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Appendix II – Phase 1 of the Scheme 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 6

P
a

g
e
 6

6



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a
g
e
 6

7



 
 

 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix III – Phase 2 of the scheme 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 6

P
a

g
e
 6

8



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a
g
e
 6

9



 
 

 

Appendix IV – The Church’s proposed Community Use of the Building 
 

Community Use of the new St John & St James Orrell Hey 
Church and Community Centre 

(to be located in the refurbished former People’s Ford Showroom on Linacre 
Lane) 

 
As a faith-based charity, St John & St James has an obligation to ensure that 
use of its buildings does not conflict in any way with the stated aims of the 
organisation. However, it is hoped that normally the community at large would 
have full reasonable access to all the facilities, and feel welcomed to make use 
of them. Only if it is clear that an activity would be out of step with those aims 
would this not apply. (See defined aims below) 
 
St John & St James Church has always been rooted in the community, and our vision 
for the new St John & St James Church and Community Centre reflects and expands 
this role. The vision for our new community church is: 
 

 “To identify and meet the spiritual, physical and emotional 
needs of the community: using knowledge of the local 
community to identify needs, responding in a holistic way 
with practical action and resources”.  

 
We have already been successful in delivering services and activities to the 
community, particularly the over 55’s and also through supporting an organization 
working directly with children and young people in the local area. Currently the 
church buildings are the only community resource available in the locality and 
provide an essential meeting and connecting place for people. 
 
The values set by the church are outlined in each Annual Report as follows: 

o Respect: acting towards others with respect 

o Inclusivity: treating all people as of equal worth 

o Accessibility: recognising and reducing the barriers that people face 

o Understanding: promoting understanding & tolerance to build stronger relationships 

o Open Door: being present in the community & responding when people approach 

o Friendliness: offering non-judgemental companionship 

o Spiritual sensitivity: recognising and responding to spiritual need 

o Wholeness: seeing and responding to the ‘whole person’ 

o Space: meeting need through the provision of appropriate facilities 

o Service: using abilities, skills and resources to contribute to the community and putting 
others first 

o Security: providing a safe and secure environment both physically and emotionally 

 
Located in one of the country’s most deprived communities we have identified two 
groups that have particularly poor outcomes: children & young people and the 
elderly. At the heart of our vision for the new church and community facility is to: 

• Overcome social exclusion in older people  

• Improve outcomes for young people  

• Bridge the gap between the young and older generations 

Our current building from which we deliver all our community activities is due to be 
demolished in January 2010, and there is no alternative community facility in the 

Agenda Item 6

Page 70



 
 

 

local area. Council funding would enable us to provide an 850m2 community centre 
from which we would be able to deliver existing and new services to the local 
community.  
 
The Centre will: 

• Provide a unique opportunity to engage positively with community 
groups and individuals to improve life opportunities and outcomes. 

• Be managed locally by a Hall Management Committee (50% Church 
Rep and 50% Community Rep) 

• Employ a community development worker through the Orrell Trust to 
develop activities in and out of the centre 

• Provide essential community space in a highly deprived area 

 
We currently accommodate the following local community organisations: 
 
 

Group Activities Number 
of users 

Frequency of 
use 
 

SORTED   
(Over 55s) 

• Weekly coffee morning 

• Regular trips/ activities 

• Bowling 

• Craft Group 

70-80 
60 
20 
12 

Weekly 
Monthly 
Weekly 
Weekly 

Credit Union • Local banking service for the 
elderly 

50 Weekly 

JUMP • Kids’ club (5-11 yrs) 50 Weekly (term 
time) 

YKids Children’s 
Charity 

• Work with schools 

• Stay & Play and holiday clubs 

3,000 
1600 

Weekly 
Annually 

Greenacres Nursery • Parenting course funded by 
Sefton Fast 

10 Weekly  
(for 10 weeks 

per year) 

Keep fit club • Exercise sessions for adults & 
children 

10 Weekly 

Chill out group  • Safe space for vulnerable 
adults 

5 Weekly 

Fruit & Veg. Coop • Low cost fruit & veg. retail 20-30 Weekly 

Church  • Sunday worship 

• Local community events 

50 
80 

Weekly 
Quarterly 

Intelligents  • Social group for local men 15-20 Monthly 

Klondyke 
Residents’ 
Association  

• Local residents’ meeting 
15-20 Quarterly 

Food bank  • Emergency food provision 
for families in crisis 

30 Annually 

 
 
We also work with the following local community partners: 
 

• Orrell Trust – A local charity established in 1996 following the tragic deaths 
of two children, Jade Matthews and James Bulger, caused by older children 

Agenda Item 6

Page 71



 
 

 

from the neighbourhood. Its aims are to address local social welfare issues, 
and it has delivered some valuable intervention work, primarily with children & 
young people. It is currently refocusing its work and is beginning to look at the 
issues suffered by people living in the Housing Market Renewal area. It is 
envisaged that the Orrell trust will be actively involved in the new centre 
possibly employing a Centre Manager/Community Development Worker 
based at the centre. 

• BReath+ (part of the Adactus Housing Association Group)  

• Springwell Park Primary School 

• Greenacres Nursery 

• Springwell Park Children’s Centre 

• Northfield Church  

• St George of England Secondary School 

 
Over the past ten years there have been a number of needs analyses and 
community consultations undertaken, all of which have identified the need for a local 
community facility and the need to improve outcomes for the elderly and children & 
young people. 
 

For information, the defined aims of the St John & St James Church Council, 
under its broader ecclesiastical purposes, are expressed as follows: 
 
1. Relevant worship which caters for all ages. 

2. Pastoral care of the congregation and parishioners. 

3. Offering Christian faith as a healing and transforming relationship 

4. Developing effective partnerships within the church and wider community 

5. Strengthening and supporting leadership at all levels. 

6. Promoting and developing volunteering opportunities and vocations amongst 
members. 

7. Developing appropriate activities for children and young people. 

8. Seeking effective interaction with and support for local schools. 

9. Providing good social opportunities for all ages 

10. Maintenance, security and development of the buildings – especially plans for 
making the present church building redundant and building a new church 
and community centre. 

11. Developing ecumenical relationships and links with the wider Christian 
community: local churches, the deanery, the diocese and the cathedral. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 72



Agenda Item 8

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 8

Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Compulsory Purchase Order - Bedford and Queens Road and Klondyke area of Bootle.
	5 Enforced Sales Procedure and Property at 24 Lander Road, Litherland
	6 Former Peoples Showroom â•ﬁ Replacement for St John and St James Church, Klondyke.
	8 South Sefton Housing Market Renewal â•ﬁ Programme Outturn 2009/10 and Forward Programme 2010/11

